IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 72,154

ED CLIFFORD THOMAS,

Appellant,

V.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT COURT IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

LARRY HELM SPALDING Capital Collateral Representative

BILLY H. NOLAS
CARLO OBLIGATO
TIMOTHY D. SCHROEDER

OFFICE OF THE CAPITAL COLLATERAL REPRESENTATIVE

1533 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
(904) 487-4376

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The following symbols will be used to designate references to the record:

"R" -- Record on Direct Appeal to this Court;

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY

On December 2, 1980, the body of James Walsworth was discovered next to his car in a parking lot in Ft. Lauderdale (R. 287). The following day, the body of Russell Bettis was discovered in an alley in the same general area (R. 304). That area of Ft. Lauderdale contained several gay bars, frequented by male prostitutes and their customers. Acting on information from a citizen, the police picked up Mr. Thomas on December 8, 1980 (R. 609). Mr. Thomas was charged with two counts of first degree murder.

At trial, the State introduced no physical evidence linking Mr. Thomas to the offenses, but relied on Mr. Thomas' statements to the police (R. 618-71), to his father (R. 671-73), and to an acquaintance (R. 725). Mr. Thomas testified, recanted his confession to the police and denied making the statements to his father and the acquaintance (R. 1017-90). The jury deliberated for six or seven hours, returned without a verdict, received a "dynamite" or Allen charge, and returned guilty verdicts cn both counts (R. 1246). The sentencing hearing began the next day (R. 1250, 1318), after trial counsel told the court that he was not prepared to proceed (R. 1250-53).

Defense counsel then called street people, homosexuals, and other friends of Mr. Thomas, to testify as to his prospects for rehabilitation, his general good character, and his friendly, mild nature. Correctional officers testified that Mr. Thomas was a good prisoner (R. 1254-90). The jury unanimously recommended life on both counts (R. 1315).

In the period between the jury's recommendation and judge sentencing, defense counsel was arrested and was under criminal investigation, which essentially forced him to close his office (R. 1333-49). The judge denied a motion for a continuance and a new trial. Sentencing proceeded on August 24, 1981, and the court overrode the life recommendation. Mr. Thomas' convictions and sentences were affirmed by this

Court, two justices dissenting from affirmance of the death sentence. Thomas v. State, 456 So. 2d 454 (Fla. 1984).

On March 11, 1986, the Governor signed a death warrant in Mr. Thomas' case. Mr. Thomas filed an original Petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus and an Application for a Stay of Execution in this Court and a Rule 3.850 motion in the Circuit Court. This Court stayed the execution. With the state attorney's agreement, the Circuit Court entered an order allowing an amended Rule 3.850 motion to be filed after this Court ruled on the habeas corpus petition. On October 2, 1986, this Court, with one dissenter, denied Mr. Thomas habeas corpus relief. Thomas v. Wainwright, 495 So. 21 172 (Fla. 1986). A petition for a writ of certiorari filed in the United States Supreme Court was denied. Thomas v. Florida, 107 S. Ct. 1360 (1987). An amended Rule 3.850 motion was filed on May 28, 1987, and was denied without a requested evidentiary hearing on February 15, 1988. Mr. Thomas filed a timely appeal.

ARGUMENT

CLAIM I

THE RULE 3.850 COURT'S SUMMARY DENIAL OF MR. THOMAS MOTION TO VACATE JUDGMENT AND SENTENCE WAS ERRONEOUS AS A MATTER OF LAW AND FACT.

Under this Court's well-settled precedents, a Rule 3.850 movant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing unless "the motion and the files and the records in the case conclusively show that the prisoner is entitled to no relief." Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.850; Lemon v. State, 498 So. 2d 923 (Fla. 1986); State v. Crews, 477 So. 2d 984 (Fla. 1985); O'Callaghan v. State, 461 So. 2d 1354 (Fla. 1984); State v. Sireci, 502 So. 2d 1221 (Fla. 1987); Mason v. State, 489 So. 2d 734 (Fla. 1986); Squires v. State, 513 So. 2d 138 (Fla. 1987); Gorham v. State, 521 So. 2d 1067 (Fla. 1988). Mr. Thomas' Motion alleged facts which, if proven, would entitle him to relief. The files and records in his case do not "conclusively show that he is entitled to no relief," and the trial court's summary denial of his motion, without an evidentiary hearing, was therefore erroneous.

Mr. Thomas' verified Rule 3.850 motion alleged and supported extensive non-record facts in support of claims which have traditionally been raised by swom allegations in Rule 3.850 post-conviction proceedings and tested through an evidentiary hearings. Mr. Thomas is entitled to an evidentiary hearing with respect to his claims, unless the files and records in the case conclusively show that he will necessarily lose on each claim. In that instance, the judge must attach "a copy of that portion of the files and records which conclusively shows that the prisoner is entitled to no relief. . . " Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.850. Otherwise, an evidentiary hearing is proper. Those portions of the record which were attached to the trial court's order here (the Defendant's Motion for New Trial; the Pre-Sentence Investigation Report; and the Defendant's Motion for Rehearing) in no way refute or rebut Mr. Thomas' swom and supported allegations, and an evidentiary hearing was and is therefore proper.

Mr. Thomas' claims are of the type classically recognized as issues warranting full and fair Rule 3.850 evidentiary resolution. Obviously, the question of whether a capital inmate was denied effective assistance of counsel during either the capital guilt-innocence or penalty phase proceedings is a paramount example of a claim requiring an evidentiary hearing for its proper resolution. See O'Callaghan, supra; Squires, supra: Groover v. State, 489 So. 2d 15 (Fla. 1986). Mr. Thomas' claim that he was denied a professionally adequate pretrial mental health evaluation due to failures on the part of counsel and the court-appointed mental health professional is also a traditionally-recognized Rule 3.850 evidentiary claim, see Mason, supra; Sireci, supra; cf.—Groover v. State, supra. Numerous other evidentiary claims requiring a full and fair hearing for their proper resolution were also presented by Mr. Thomas' Rule 3.850 motion.

In O'Callaghan, supra, this Court recognized that a hearing was required because facts necessary to the disposition of an ineffective assistance claim were not "of record." See also Vaught v. State, 442 So. 2d 217, 219 (Fla. 1983). Indeed, this

Court has stated that it

hearings when faced with this type of proceeding in view of the relatively recent decision in the United States Supreme Court in <u>Summer v. Mata</u>, 449 U.S. 539 (1981). It is important for the trial courts of this state to recognize that, if they hold an evidentiary hearing on this type of issue, under the <u>Summer decision</u> their finding of fact has a presumption of correctness in the United States district courts.

. . .

The practical effect of the state court's denial of an evidentiary hearing on an ineffective-assistance-of-counsel claim is to leave the factual finding of this issue to the federal courts. It is for this reason that we suggest, even when not legally required, that trial courts conduct, in most instances, evidentiary hearings on this type of issue.

Jones v. State, 446 So. XI 1056, 1062-63 (Fla. 1984).

Thus, this Court has not hesitated to remand Rule 3.850 cases for required evidentiary hearings. See, e.g., Zeigler v. State, 452 So. XI 537 (1984); Vaught, supra; Lemon, supra; Squires, supra; Gorham, supra; Smith v. State, 461 So. XI 1354 (Fla. 1985); Morgan v. State, 461 So. XI 1534 (Fla. 1985); Meeks v. State, 382 So. 2d 673 (Fla. 1980); McCrae v. State, 437 So. 2d 1388 Fla. 1983); LeDuc v. State, 415 So. 2d 721 (Fla. 1982); Demps v. State, 416 So. 2d 808 (Fla. 1982); Arango v. State, 437 So. 2d 1099 (Fla. 1983). These cases control: Mr. Thomas was (and is) entitled to an evidentiary hearing, and the trial court's summary denial of his Rule 3.850 Motion was therefore erroneous.

CLAIM II

THE FAILURE OF THE TRIAL JUDGE TO CONSIDER NONSTATUTORY MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES VIOLATED MR. THOMAS EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS, AND TRIAL COUNSEL UNREASONABLY AND INEFFECTIVELY FAILED TO ADDRESS THE ISSUE.

Mr. Thomas' case presents a classic and compelling violation of Hitchcock v.

Dugger, 107 S. Ct. 1821 (1987). Although evidence supporting a multitude of non-statutory mitigating circumstances was presented, the judge failed to give consideration to any evidence which was not directly pertinent to the statutory mitigating circumstances. Thus, in a case in which the jury unanimously recommended a life sentence and in which the judge found two statutory mitigating circumstances, a wealth of evidence in mitigation was never considered by the sentencer. Mr. Thomas was sentenced to death in violation of the eighth and fourteenth amendments.

A sentencer in a capital case may not limit his or her consideration of mitigating circumstances. <u>Hitchcock v. Dugger</u>, 107 S. Ct. 1821 (1987); <u>Eddings v. Oklahoma</u>, 455 U. S. 104, 113-14 (1982); <u>Lockett v. Ohio</u>, 438 U. S. 586 (1978). In Florida, a death-sentenced petiticner is entitled to relief if such a limitation occurs either before a sentencing jury or a sentencing judge:

The record of the sentencing proceeding in this case shows a situation similar to that found in Hitchcock v. Dugger, U.S., 107 S. Ct. 1821, 95 L.Ed.2d 347 (1987). There the Supreme Court found that "the sentencing proceedings actually conducted" showed that the sentencing judge operated under the assumption that non-statutory mitigating circumstances could not be considered. Id. 107 S. Ct. at 1823.

. . . .

[W]e find that the trial judge who sentenced appellant to death did not believe he was obliged to receive and consider evidence pertaining to non-statutory mitigating factors.

^{&#}x27;Before the decision in Hitchcock, Mr. Thomas presented this claim to this Court in a Petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus. Relying on its pre-Hitchcock decisions, the Court denied relief. Thomas v. Wainwright, 495 So. 2d 172 (1986). In the Rule 3.850 proceedings, the trial court found that this Court's denial of the claim and the fact that the claim was not raised on direct appeal foreclosed the trial court's review of the claim (Order, p. 3). As is clear from every post-Hitchcock pronouncement of this Court, no procedural bar now forecloses this Court's review of Mr. Thomas' Hitchcock claim. See Waterhouse v. State, 522 So. ad 341 (Fla. 1988);

Downs v. Dugger, 514 So. 2d 1069 (Fla. 1987); Thompson v. Dugger, 515 So. 2d 173 (Fla. 1987); Morgan v. State, 515 So. 2d 975 (Fla. 1987); Riley v. Wainwright, 517 So. 2d 656 (Fla. 1987); McCrae v. State, 510 So. 2d 874 (Fla. 1987); Delap v. Dugger, 513 So. 2d 659 (Fla. 1987); Mikenas v. Dugger, 519 So. 2d 601 (Fla. 1988); Combs v. State, 525 So. ad 853 (Fla. 1988); Foster v. State, 518 So. 2d 901 (Fla. 1988); Teigler v. Dugger, 524 So. 2d 419 (Fla. 1988).

This finding, based on the record, is sufficient to require a new sentencing hearing.

McCrae v. State, 510 So. 2d 874, 880 (Fla. 1987). When "the trial judge believe[s] that non-statutory mitigating evidence [is] not a proper consideration," resentencing is required. Zeigler v. Dugger, 524 So. 2d 419, 421 (Fla. 1988). See also Morgan v. State, 515 So. 2d 975, 976 (Fla. 1987) ("It is abundantly clear from the record that . . . the trial judge did not take into account . . . any evidence of non-statutory mitigating circumstances"); Riley v. Wainwright, 517 So. 2d 656, 659 (Fla. 1987)("[T]he standards imposed by Lockett bind both the judge and the jury under our law"); Messer v. Florida, 834 F.23 890, 892 (11th Cir. 1987)(same).

In Mr. Thomas' case, both the judge and jury were constrained in their consideration of non-statutory mitigation. The jury nevertheless returned a unanimous life recommendation. The judge, however, overrode that recommendation and imposed death, failing to consider evidence of non-statutory mitigation. Mr. Thomas was thus denied an individualized and reliable capital sentencing determination. His entitlement to relief on the merits is obvious: there can be no doubt that the proceedings resulting in his sentence of death violated the mandate of Hitchcock v. Dugger. See also Lockett, supra; Skipper v. South Carolina, 106 S. Ct. 1669 (1986); Eddings, supra. The trial judge's failure to consider evidence of non-statutory mitigating circumstances parallels the Hitchcock sentencing court's limited consideration of non-statutory mitigation. In Hitchcock, the unanimous court held:

[I]t could not be clearer that the advisory jury was instructed not to consider, and the sentencing judge refused to consider, evidence of non-statutory mitigating circumstances, and that the proceedings therefore did not comport with the requirements of Skipper v. South Carolina. 476 U.S. ____, 106 S. Ct. 1669, 90 L.Ed.2d 1 (1986), Eddings v. Oklahoma, 455 U.S. 104, 102 S.Ct. 869, 71 L.Ed.2d 1 (1982), and Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586, 98 S. Ct. 2954, 57 L.Ed.2d 973 (1978) (plurality opinion).

107 S. Ct. at 1824.

Ed Thomas' sentence of death resulted from proceedings which were as unconstitutional as those in <u>Hitchcock</u>. Mr. Thomas is entitled to the same relief,

- A. THE TRIAL JUDGE BELIEVED THAT HE COULD NOT CONSIDER NON-STATUTORY MITIGATING EVIDENCE
 - 1. Record Evidence that the Trial Judge Improperly Failed to Consider Non-Statutory Mitigation.

Most strikingly indicative of the trial court's failure to consider non-statutory mitigation is what occurred at argument m a defense motion for rehearing, heard after the court had imposed sentence. At least five individuals testified before the jury that Mr. Thomas was an excellent candidate for rehabilitation in prison (R. 1255, 1257, 1259, 1262, 1267, 1268), which is a recognized non-statutory mitigating circumstance. See Skipper, supra. In the later argument to the trial judge, and in discussing the unanimous jury recommendation of life, the following colloquy occurred:

[MR. KENT : [T]hey, after speaking with different jurors after the fact, took into account certain mitigating circumstances such as the defendant's youth and the defendant prior --

MR. HANCOCK: I apologize for interrupting, but I would object.

THE COURT: I don't want to hear any discussions that you have had with someone else.

MR. KENT: Right. <u>I am going to assume that in making that recommendation the jurors took into account the defendant's youth.</u> [a statutory mitigating circumstance]

THE COURT: So did I.

MR. KENT: His lack of involvement in other criminal activity. [a statutory mitigating circumstance]

THE COURT: So did I.

MR. KENT: And his likelihood and hope for rehabilitation. [a nonstatutory mitigating circumstance]

THE COURT: That is not in the mitiaatina.

(R. 1374-75) (emphasis added). Actually there was plenty of "[t]hat" (rehabilitation) in evidence, but "[t]hat" is not in the statutory list of mitigating circumstances and, consequently, the trial court did not answer that "[t]hat" was one of the things

he considered.

The record is replete with other documentation that the court believed the statutory list of mitigating circumstances to be an exclusive list. The trial court emphasized that he would not impose sentence without first receiving a presentence investigation (PSI) (R. 24, 1352, 1356-58, 1361). The PSI makes evident that the PSI preparer was under a misconception about capital sentencing, a misconception that foreshadowed the trial court's constitutional error. In arriving at a recommendation, the preparer examined "the aggravating and mitigating circumstances which Florida Statutes sec. 921.141 requires the court to consider. ..." (App. 2, p. 9) (emphasis added). The preparer then went through the statutory list, without any discussion of non-statutory mitigating circumstances, and arrived at a "simple mathematical process":

In summation, the entire incident is a tragedy. Any time a life is taken it is a heinous crime. However as a simple mathematical process the aggravating circumstances and mitigating circumstances required for the death penalty are not present in count I, therefore the death penalty is not recommended.

In count II it is felt that the aggravating circumstances outweigh the mitigating circumstances and . . lead this Officer to professionally recommended [sic] that the court impose the maximum penalty allowed by the law: death.

(App. 2, p. 12) (emphasis added).

This unconstitutional mathematical process was mirrored in the court's sentencing order, the court that admitted placing great weight on the PSI. The court too made findings "[p ursuant to the provisions of Florida Statute sec. 921.141(3)" (R. 1545). The court too listed only the statutory criteria, made no mention of non-statutory mitigating circumstances, and used a simple mathematical process:

In summary, the Court finds that of nine aggravating circumstances, one is applicable as to Count I, and five were applicable as to Count 11. As to the mitigating circumstances, two applied in this case as to each Count.

(R. 1547-48) (emphasis added). (See also R. 1366-67).

The trial court also revealed through jury instructions the belief that

mitigation was limited. Before the sentencing proceeding began, the jury was informed that "[a]t the conclusion of the taking of the evidence and after argument of counsel, you will be instructed on the factors in aggravation and mitigation that you may consider" (R. 1253) (emphasis added). True to his word, the trial court instructed the jury:

The mitigating circumstances which you may consider if established by the evidence, are these:

(R. 1310 • The statutory list, and only the statutory list, followed.

The state attorney likewise believed that mitigation was limited to the statutory factors, and his comments to that effect to the judge and jury were never corrected. When recommending punishment in a pleading, the state attorney mentioned only statutory mitigation (R. 1542). In closing argument at the penalty phase, the state attorney informed the jury that the law was restrictive:

And you have to make a recommendation and you have to base that on the law and the facts. And the judge is going to instruct you on what the law is. and there are certain mitigating circumstances you can consider and there are certain aggravating circumstances.

(R. 1291-92) (emphasis added). (See also R. 1293 ["there are certain things you can take into consideration"]).

Clearly, the trial judge did not believe he could consider and did not consider evidence of non-statutory mitigating circumstances. The judge did not consider Mr. Thomas' potential for rehabilitation because "[t]hat is not in the mitigating" cf. Skipper, supra, 106 S.Ct. at 1671 (good behavior in jail is relevant mitigating evidence); the judge gave the jury the same instruction as that given to the jury in Hitchcock, see 107 S. Ct. at 1824; the judge discussed only statutory mitigating circumstances in his sentencing order, finding that the statutory mitigating circumstances did not outweigh the statutory aggravating circumstances. As reflected in his jury instructions, see Zeigler v. Dugger, 524 So. 2d at 420 ("Unless there is something in the record to suggest to the contrary, it may be presumed that the

judge's perception of the law coincided with the manner in which the jury was instructed"), and as shown by his sentencing order, the sentencing judge in Mr. Thomas' case "assumed . . . a prohibition [against non-statutory mitigation]" and foreclosed his review. Hitchcock, 107 S. Ct, at 1823; see also McCrae, supra; Zeigler, supra; Morgan, supra; Messer, supra.

2. Ncn-Record Evidence That The Trial Judge Improperly Failed to Consider Non-Statutory Mitigation.

In addition to the record evidence discussed above, nonrecord information supports the proposition that Mr. Thomas' trial judge did not believe he could consider non-statutory mitigating circumstances at the time of trial in 1981. The best indication is Herzog v, State, 439 So.2d 1372 (Fla. 1983), a decision regarding another capital case tried before Mr. Thomas' judge. In that case, an override of a jury's life recommendation was overturned on appeal because, inter alia, there was no indication that the trial court considered non-statutory mitigating circumstances:

The trial court properly found that no statutory mitigating circumstances existed; however, there is no indication in the sentencing order that the court considered non-statutory mitigating circumstances.

Ld. at 1376. The sentencing order in <u>Herzog</u> was signed December 1, 1981, four months after the Thomas order (see App. 20).

In five other capital cases decided around the same time as Nr. Thomas' case, the same trial judge prepared similar sentencing orders discussing only statutory mitigating circumstances. See Wilson v. State, 436 So. 2d 908 (Fla. 1983) (sentencing order dated September 30, 1981, App. 20); Jackson v. State, 464 So. 2d 1181 (Fla. 1985) (sentencing order dated December 2, 1981, App. 20); Livingston v. State, 458 So. 2d 235 (Fla. 1984) (sentencing order dated January 5, 1982, App. 20); McCray v. State, 416 So. 2d 804 (Fla. 1982) (sentencing order dated August 30, 1980, App. 20); O'Callaghan v. State, 461 So. 2d 1354 (Fla. 1984) (sentencing order dated May 12, 1981, App. 20). It was not until 1984 that the trial court changed its standard sentencing order to include language acknowledging non-statutory mitigating

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