IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JAN 5 1989

ED CLIFFORD THOMAS,		COURT
Appellant,	Victoria nascona con contra de la contra dela contra de la contra dela contra de la contra del la c	Clerk
V.) CASE NO. 72,154	
STATE OF FLORIDA,)	
Appellee.))	

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

On Appeal from the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit Court In and For Broward County, State of Florida

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050

DEBORAH GULLER Assistant Attorney General 111 Georgia Avenue, Suite 204 West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 (407) 837-5062

Counsel for Appellee

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

CLAIM I

The evidence presented to the trial court and the allegations raised in Appellant's 3.850 Motion did not warrant an evidentiary hearing as the record conclusively demonstrates that Appellant is not entitled to relief.

CLAIM II

The trial court permitted extensive argument and testimony as to nonstatutory mitigating factors. The fact that his sentencing order was non-specific as to the nonstatutory

factors does not translate to nonconsideration. The jury was properly instructed; and the trial court properly determined that the aggravating factors far outweighed all factors in mitigation.

CLAIM III

Trial counsel was not ineffective. Any evidence not before the jury was before the judge. The jury recommended life imprisonment which is a strong indication he was effective. The jury override is not an indication of ineffective assistance of counsel, but rather, that the facts warrant the capital sentence.

CLAIM IV

Trial counsel was not denied an opportunity to rebut the findings in the PSI. He had notice of the report prior to sentencing. Any actual error or deficiency did not result in prejudice to Appellant as the trial court was aware of P.S.I. deficiencies. Further the PSI information was cumulative to other evidence before the court.

CLAIM V

The trial court properly overrode the jury's recommended life sentence for the murder of Russell Bettis. The four aggravating factors far outweighed the two factors in mitigation.

CLAIM VI

Appellant was not subjected to improper cross examination. Questions asked were in direct response to direct or redirect examination and did not delve into protected areas.

CLAIM VII

The trial court did not give the jury a "dynamite" charge as alleged. The jury was never deadlocked. Whatever concern jurors had, inheres to the verdict.

CLAIM VIII

Appellant did have the benefit of competent psychiatric evaluation. Dr. Zager did have access to Appellant's past psychiatric history. Evidence presented by Dr. Smith, in a post-sentencing evaluation, is cumulative to Dr. Zager's report and other P.S.I. data.

CLAIM IX

The United States Supreme Court mandates that residual doubt is not a mitigating factor.

CLAIM I

THE TRIAL COURT APPROPRIATELY DENIED APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR POST-CONVICTION RELIEF, WITHOUT THE NECESSITY OF AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING, SINCE THE RECORD DEMONSTRATES CONCLUSIVELY THAT APPELLANT WAS NOT ENTITLED TO RELIEF ON ANY CLAIM.

Appellant maintains that the trial court erred in denying claims in his post-conviction relief motion, without an evidentiary hearing. It is clear from the nature of such claims, and the Record of Appellant's trial and sentencing proceedings, that five (5) of these were inappropriately brought on a collateral basis, and were, along with the remaining claims,

conclusively rebutted by the Record so as to mandate affirmance of the trial court's denial of relief. Appellant, on December 8, 1980, confessed to having murdered James Walsworth and Russell Bettis.

This Court has consistently held that in a capital case, where both the motion and Record conclusively demonstrate no entitlement to relief, a capital defendant is <u>not</u> entitled to an evidentiary hearing.

A motion to vacate judgment may be denied without an evidentiary hearing where the motion and the record of the case conclusively demonstrate that the movant is entitled to no relief.

Lightbourne v. State, 471 So.2d 27 (Fla. 1985). Here the trial judge, who was the same judge who presided at the proceedings when appellant ... was sentenced, could reasonably and properly have determined that appellant was conclusively shown to be entitled to no relief.

Agan v. State, 503 So.2d 1254, 1256 (Fla. 1987) (emphasis added);
Herring v. State, 501 So.2d 1279 (Fla. 1987); Harich v. State,

484 So.2d 1239 (Fla. 1986); Mann v. State, 482 So.2d 1360, 136162 (Fla. 1986); Troedel v. State, 479 So.2d 736, 737-738 (Fla. 1985); Porter v. State, 478 So.2d 33 (Fla. 1985); Middleton v. State, 465 So.2d 1218 (Fla. 1985). Appellant's motion, when viewed in light of a Record that he selectively ignores in his brief, clearly demonstrates that the trial court correctly determined that all claims could be denied, without resort to an evidentiary hearing. Agan, supra; Herring, supra; Harich, supra; Porter, supra; Middleton, supra.

It should initially be noted that the trial court correctly and appropriately determined that several of Appellant's claims were improvidently raised on a motion for collateral relief. Specifically, the trial court's conclusions that Appellant's instant claim \underline{V} (the alleged unconstitutionality of Florida's override procedure, both factually and as applied); II (alleged failure of trial court to consider nonstatutory mitigating factors; VII (the alleged impropriety of the jury's verdict); VIII (the alleged denial of access to a mental health expert); VI (improper cross examination by the prosecution); was appropriately based on the fact that such claims were, (trial court order of denial), should or could have been raised by objection at trial, and direct appeal. Stone v. State, 481 So. 2d 478 (Fla. 1985); Sireci v. State, 469 So.2d 119 (Fla. 1985); Middleton, supra; O'Callaghan v. State, 461 So.2d 1354 (Fla. 1984); Meeks v. State, 382 So.2d 673 (Fla. 1980). Because this Court has consistently held such claims to be non-cognizable on a motion for post-conviction relief, Appellant's arguments to the contrary are totally without merit. Id.

Appellant raised ten claims in his Motion to Vacate

Judgment and Sentence, and in this instant claim on appeal

alleges impropriety in the trial court's denial of an evidentiary

hearing on these issues. His main claim is that his trial

counsel was ineffective at sentencing. Appellee posits that the

fact that the jury recommended a life sentence (R. 1315) belies

this allegation as Appellant was convicted of two first degree

murder charges (R. 1246). This claim cannot be appropriately analyzed without specific and careful reference to the standard and relevant criteria as set forth in Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984). In Strickland the Court announced the appropriate two-part test to be met by a defendant claiming that trial counsel was ineffective:

First, the defendant must show that counsel's performance was deficient. requires showing that counsel made errors so serious that counsel was not functioning as the 'counsel' guaranteed the defendant by the Sixth Amendment. Second, the defendant must show that the deficient performance prejudiced the defense. This requires showing that counsel's errors were so serious as to deprive the defendant of a fair trial, a trial whose result is reliable, Unless a defendant makes both showings, it cannot be said that the conviction or death sentence resulted from a breakdown in the adversary process that renders the result unreliable.

Strickland at 687. It is Appellee's contention that allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel, addressed more fully, infra, claim 111, before the sentencing judge, notwithstanding a claim of unpreparedness, are without merit as the trial court reviewed the PSI report which contains the purportedly omitted information that allegedly would have lead the trial court to validate the jury's life sentence by finding life imprisonment to be appropriate. Allegations of ineffectiveness at sentencing has, as to the jury, not proven to result in prejudice; and as to the trial judge, to be harmless as the same information, was before the judge in the PSI report.

The ultimate question then, is in denying the Appellant an evidentiary hearing were the claims raised in his 3.850 motion conclusively without merit? To answer that question, Appellee posits that the evidence before the trial court required his override of the jury's recommendation. Where the jury's advisory recommendation is a life sentence which the court deems inappropriate under the law, the court "not only may, but must overrule the jury Brookings v. State, 495 So. 2d 135, 145 (Fla. 1986). The override will be sustained where the facts are so "clear and convincing that virtually no reasonable person differ, Tedder v. State, 322 So.2d 908, 910 (Fla. 1975). Clearly, in the case at bar the trial court properly considered all evidence in mitigation of Appellant's sentence, but properly found the weight of the evidence to support death. The trial court's decision is supported by competent substantial evidence. No reasonable person could differ as to the necessity of the death sentence, notwithstanding Appellant's repudiation of his confession.

Appellant's Motion alleged the omission of evidence of Appellant's negative childhood — his mother left the family, an abusive and alcoholic father, learning disabilities, and Appellant's life on the streets. The trial court had this evidence before him prior to imposition of sentence. The trial judge specifically waited for the P.S.I. wherein aspects of Appellant's childhood were presented for review.

The defendant evaluates his present health as "excellent."

<u>Mental</u>: Subject related he has never suffered from any mental or emotional problems. It is this Officer's opinion that the subject does not suffer from any delusional thinking and displays an attitude that he can discern right from wrong.

According to Arnold S. Zager, M.D. P.A. "there is rather significant past psychiatric history which apparently has a most direct bearing upon the present crimes. The subject was born in Marion, Illinois, and raised primarily in Detroit, Michigan. He was initially raised by his father and mother but apparently his mother deserted the family when the subject was only age 7. He was thereafter raised by his father and future stepmother. The subject additionally had an older brother, age 23, and a younger sister, age 19. He recalls his father being an alcoholic and an apparent child abuser. He described a rather stormy and tumultuous and conflictual childhood, wherein he was frequently savagely beaten by his father on only limited provacation. [sic]" He specifically recalls that at age 6, he was whipped by his father with a dog chain and later on by a broom handle. He recalls that he was primarily the child who was physically abused and punished by the father in contrast to the other two siblings. He states that he always had an angry and stormy relationship with his father, whom he pictures as a rather brutal, sadistic individual. He parenthetically adds that he thought more of a science teacher in his school than of the relationship that he had with his father. He alluded to feelings of depravation and isolation which were prominent feelings and features of his growing years.

In order to gain social acceptance by his family and the world, he became the class clown. In fourth grade and thereafter, he

went to great lengths to make his fellow school children laugh at his humor. was also accused of being the bully of the neighborhood, specifically by his father. He impulsively quit school in the 9th grade and apparently engaged in various run-a-way behavior. At age 14, he ran away to California and on his way there hitchhiking, had his first homosexual experience. The subject describes himself basically as a bi-sexual individual who is physically attracted to women but feels out of place and extremely self conscious engaging in relationships with them. notes that any homosexual relationships are typically associated with older men. Indeed when he meets a homosexual of his own age, he thinks of him more as a competitor for "clients" rather than a possible sexual object itself. His particular attraction and involvement in homosexual relationships only with older men may have a direct baring upon his rather stormy and sadistic relationship that he experienced with his natural father.

Mental status examination discloses a husky, muscular well built young white male who was quite cooperative to the interview setting and related in reasonable and positive fashion to this particular physician. His nails were bitten down and he was dressed in a tshirt and pants. As the interview progressed, he appeared to pick at pimples present on his face. There was no over [sic] evidence of a psychotic thought disorder during the interview nor did he manifest evidence of a schizophrenic process. His associative processes for the most part were in tact, although self image and self esteem were significantly impaired. He did not manifest evidence of delusions, halucinations [sic] nor ideas of reference. Sensorium was in tact as judged by orientation to time, person and place; and memory for recent and past events appeared to be fair. General finding of information was in the below average range, although patient was

competent and aware of the present charges facing him.

His judgement and insight at times are impulsive and likewise impaired.

It is also noteworthy that the subject is quite aware that he may very well be given the death penalty if he is convicted of these charges. He adds, "I want to die on my terms. I don't care if I die, but I want to be crucified. He states that he would like such a crucifixion to be placed on national television and feels that it would be quite reasonable that the Pope of the catholic church would make a special trip to this country to witness such a crucifixion. [sic] He states this with a rather calm and quite demeanor.

Impression:

While Ed appears to know the difference between right and wrong at the time of the committment [sic] of the alleged crime, there appear to be rather definite and significant factors which have a direct bearing upon his carrying out such an act. His apparent history of being physically and perhaps sadistically abused by his father, may have provoked the intensive anger and rage expressed at the victim (Mr. Walsworth). He again felt abused and perhaps ridiculed by Mr. Walsworth and, indeed may have transferred the rage that he felt for many years at his father for his constant physical harrassments [sic], to the victim, who may have been comparable in age to his father. act of getting even with Mr. Walsworth may have been his unconscious attempt to get even for the evils that he felt may have directly impaired his ability to conduct himself in a reasonable degree and to reasonably appreciate the criminality of his acts. That is not to say that he was psychotic at the time, but he was under significant emotional diress [sic]. would likewise add that when he was interrogated by the Detectives and Police Officers one week later, the stress of

that environment may have again rekindled his interrogation and abuse by his father of many years ago and he may very well have admitted to any and all acts to be again free of such harrassments [sic].

Employment: The defendant's only employment record in the Ft. Lauderdale area is a sporatic [sic] one as a Laborer for the Labor Poll located at 101 SW 2nd Street, Ft. Lauderdale, Florida. The subject stated he has no specific trades or years of experience and his preferred employment would be that of a Laborer.

Subject related that he had managed financially by residing in a paramour relationship with Bill Ayers and therefore did not contribute financially for his room and board.

Economic status: The subject stated he has absolutely no assets nor any liabilities. The subject estimates his net worth to be zero.

STATEMENTS OF COURT OFFICIALS AND OTHERS:

<u>Defense Attorney</u>: Norman Kent, stated that he would reserve comment until the time of sentencing however stated that life imprisonment would be an appropriate sentence.

<u>Law Enforcement</u>: Detectives Jones and Fuch never responded to this Officer's request for comments.

Bill Ayers, the defendant's past lover and adoptive father stated "as of July 6, 1981 we have changed our relationship to that of father-son. I know he didn't do it. He told the police that he did it because he was drunk. He lived with me since November, 1978. I trusted him to take care of my grandmother and she's 81 years old. I would stake my life on him. Ed says Tom Woods did it. I know that there is no way that the kid could ever hurt

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